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Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust

Trustees' Report

The Trustees present their Annual Report together with the financial statements and Auditor's Report of Our Lady of
Grace Catholic Academy Trust (the Trust or the Charitable Company) for the year from 1 September 2019 to 31 August
2020. The Annual Report serves the purposes of both a Trustees' Report, and a Directors' Report under company law.

The Trust operates for pupils aged 2-11 and includes four primary academies in Newham, in London (the schools or the
academies) as follows:

-St Edward’s Catholic Primary School (academy converter on 1 September 2019)

-St Francis® Catholic Primary School (academy converter on | September 2019)

-St Helen’s Catholic Primary School; and

-St Joachim’s Catholic Primary School

Our academies have a combined pupil capacity of 1,530 (excluding part time places in nurseries and pre-school) and
had a roll of 1,595 in the school census in January 2020 (2019 January census: 734 pupils on roll excluding the two new
converters). The additional numbers on roll, above the schools’ capacity of 1,530 are accounted for by the children in

pre-school and nursery.

Structure, Governance and Management
Constitution

The Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The Charitable Company's memorandum and
articles of association are its primary governing documents. '

The Trustees of Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust are also the Directors of the Charitable Company for the
purposes of company law, hereafter referred to as the Trustees. The Charitable Company operates as Our Lady of Grace
Catholic Academy Trust (a Multi Academy Trust).

In this Report the term Director or Trustee refers to a member of the Trust Board. The term Governor refers to a member
of a Local Governing Body (LGB).

Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are included in the
Reference and Administrative Details on page 3. :

Members' Liability

The Members of the Charitable Company are listed on page 3. Each Member undertakes to contribute to the assets of

the Charitable Company in the event of it being wound up while they are a Member, or within one year after they cease

to be a Member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 (as required in the Trust's funding

agreement/memorandum and articles of association) for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a -
Member.

Trustees' Indemnities

The Companies Act 2006 s236 requires disclosure concerning qualifying third party indemnity provisions, which are
covered through the Department for Education’s Risk Protection Arrangements (RPA). Our Lady of Grace Catholic
Academy Trust is a member of this scheme.

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees

The management of the Trust is the responsibility of the Trustees, who are appointed in line with the Articles of
Association. Trustees are appointed to ensure the skill base of the Board is maintained and has sufficient breadth to

serve the Company.



Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust

Trustees' Report (continued)

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees (continued)

From st September 2018 the membership of the Board of Trustees was re-designated by the Members (i.e. the Diocese),
resulting in the serving Headteachers and Governors of schools within the Trust stepping down; the desirable number
of Trustees being nine. The Trust advertised via the website and in local parishes for Trustees to ensure a suitable skills
set. During 2019/20 the Board comprises 8 Foundation Trustees, appointed by the Diocesan Bishop.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Directors and Governors

The Trust provides both individual and full governing body training. Trustees and Governors are required to complete
an annual skills audit, which along with identifying strengths, also identifies areas they would like to develop. This is
then used to inform targeted training in specific areas.

Trustees and Governors attend an annual training session tailored to the needs of the schools. In addition Trustees,
Governors and staff attend an annual training day to review school performance. This day is also used to ensure all staff,
Governors and Trustees are involved in the next phase of school improvement.

When a new Governor is appointed they receive the governors’ handbook for each school; tour each school with the
Headteacher; and receive access to school documents to review all policies. All Governors and Trustees regularly attend
the schools for focussed visits linked to the school improvement plan and develop Governors’ understanding of the day
to day operations of the school.

The Trust purchases a Service Level Agreement (SLA) from the local schools service Governors Support Section, which
offers a comprehensive package of training and support. The Diocese of Brentwood also provides annual training
sessions which Trustees and Governors have access to. In addition a school improvement partner works with the schools
to offer guidance for the Headteachers’ performance management and for other support as necessary.

Organisational Structure

As a charity limited by guarantee, Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust is governed by a Board of Trustees who
are responsible for, and oversee the management and administration of the Charitable Company and academies run by
the Company. :

In order to discharge their responsibilities, the Trustees ensure a Local Governing Body (LGB) is in place for each
school. The LGB’s comprise Foundation Governors, appointed by the Bishop of Brentwood, elected parents (elected
from the parents body of the school by parents) and staff Governors (elected by the staff of the school) in line with the
Trust’s scheme of delegation. Foundation Governors form the majority of the LGB for each academy in line with the
Memorandum of Understanding with the Diocese. The LGBs have been established to ensure the good governance of
each school within the Trust. .

The Trustees delegate various functions to each LGB in relation only to their relevant academy, which includes:

e accountability and monitoring of school performance and standards;

e setting and approval of polices that apply to individual schools;

e recommending the annual school budgets; monitoring of budgets thereafter and further advice to the Board on
potential over and underspends;

o reviewing the premises management and ensuring health and safety issues are complied with;

e appointing a committee to apply the Deanery admission policy in accordance with the Admissions Code and
with due regard to any locally agree a fair access protocols;

e governing exclusions in accordance with appropriate regulations; and

¢ supporting the Headteacher in recruiting and selection, grievance, disciplinary and processes in relation to staff,
where appropriate.

In addition to the LGB each school has its own Senior Leadership Team (SLT), which includes the Headteacher and
either a deputy head or two or three assistant heads (dependent on the needs of the school), who are responsible for the
day to management and operation of their school.
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Trustees' Report (continued)
Organisational Structure (continued)

The Trustees have overall responsibility and ultimate decision making authority for all the work of the Charitable
Company and retain overall responsibility for the planning of strategy and setting the Trust’s policies.

The Trustees have appointed a Chief Accounting Officer (CAO), in line with the 2016 guidance. During 2019/20 the
Accounting Officer and was one of the Headteachers, as detailed on page 3. Due to the expansion of the Trust and
retirement of several Headteachers, in addition to a Headteacher in each school, the Trustees appointed a part-time CAO
from 1* September 2020.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel (KMP)

The schools within Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust agreed that they would apply the School Teachers Pay
and Conditions Document (STPCD) published annually by the Department for Education. The Local Authority pay
policy follows the STPCD regarding pay scales and ranges. The Trustees approve the policy annually. This policy
applies to all staff, including key management personnel, i.e. the SLT, as noted on page 3.

The Trust has adopted the Catholic Education Services (CES) appraisal / performance management policies. All staff,
" including the SLT within each school, have clear performance targets, including pupil progress. If targets are met and
clear evidence is provided, the staff member receives an incremental point in line with the pay policy, authorised by the
Headteacher. For experienced teachers to gain access to the upper threshold, teachers must apply for this pay scale and
school procedures should evidence that the teacher is highly competent in all elements of the relevant standards; and
that the teacher’s achievements and contribution to the educational setting are substantial and sustained. The Governors
and Trustees receive summarised reports detailing performance grades, meeting of targets and upper threshold payments.

For the Headteachers appraisals, the school’s link Trustee, Chair of the LGB and one other Governor meet with the
external adviser to review the Headteacher’s evidence against the agreed targets. If targets have been met the chair of
the LGB will authorise the increment. The procedure is minuted at the Trustees and LGB meetings.

No Trustees have received remuneration from the Trust and no bonus or additional payments have been made.

"Trade Union facility time

The Trust had no employees that are Trade Union representatives, but paid £4,335 (2019: £1,193) to the Local Authority,
the London Borough of Newham, for union and public duty services provided to the academies in the reporting period.

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

“For the purposes of these accounts, related parties are Members and Trustees and those who exert considerable control
over the Trust. In addition the Trust works closely with many connected parties, which may have influence over the
schools. The Trust also collaborates with several community and charity organisations.

Related Parties

The Diocese of Brentwood, as a Member, is a related party. The Trust works closely with the Diocese of Brentwood,
in particular the Education Department. The Diocese offer support, advice and training for staff within the Trust.

The Education team of the Diocese of Brentwood provide a number of services to all Catholic schools in the Diocese,
including the schools in the Trust. Details of these services and related fees are disclosed in the related party note on
page 52.

In addition, one of the Foundation Trustees, Mr S Webb, is a Director of Development at the Diocese of Brentwood.



Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust

Trustees' Report (continued)
Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations (continued)

Connected Parties

Schools within the Trust have fundraising and friends groups, including St Francis’ Fund (Newham) (charity number
1173650); Friends of St Helen’s (FOSH) (charity number: 1126941); and Friends of St Joachim’s (FOSJA). St Edward’s
are establishing a friends charity. This has been delayed as a new charity account could not be opened during the initial
COVID closure. These groups are considered as connected parties. The Headteachers liaise closely with the charities
or groups and they provide funds for their school.

Charities

St Helen’s sponsors children through HCPT (a charity offering pilgrimage holidays). The schools also fundraise on
behalf of several charities including CAFOD, the Brentwood Catholic Children’s Society, the British Legion Poppy
Appeal, Cancer UK, Macmillan Nurses and others.

Community Organisations

The schools in the Trust also work in partnership with the other Catholic Deanery schools in Newham, collaborating on
admissions, transition to secondary school projects and curriculum issues. All schools are members of the St Edward’s
Teaching School Alliance and support with the provision of professional development for other schools and train
teachers through the school direct programme.

The Local Authority continues to offer a School Improvement Adviser to the schools and all schools access-a range of
SEND services provided by the Local Authority. All Headteachers are members of the Newham Association of

Headteachers (NAPH).

Objectives and Activities
Objects and Aims

The Trust’s objects are specifically restricted to the advancement of the Catholic religion in the Diocese by such means
as the Diocesan Bishop may think fit and proper by, but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing:

a) The establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing of:

i. Catholic schools in the United Kingdom designated as such conducted in accordance with the principles,
and subject to the regulations and discipline of the Catholic Church including for the avoidance of any
doubt any directives issued by the Diocesan Bishop from time to time; and

ii. subject to the approval of the Diocesan Bishop, other schools in the United Kingdom; and

b) as purely ancillary to (a) promoting for the benefit of the inhabitants of the areas in which the Schools are situated
the provision of facilities for recreation or other leisure time occupation of individuals who have need of such
facilities by reason of their youth, age, infirmity or disablement, financial hardship or social and economic
circumstances or for the public at large in the interests of social welfare and with the object of improving the
condition of life of the said inhabitants.
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Trustees' Report (continued)

Objectives

The Trustees and Governors have defined the main objectives of the Trust and their schools to be:

e to develop the whole child ensuring Gospel Values drive their aspiration to serve their communities throughout

their lives;

e to ensure the long term sustainability and continuity of Catholic education in the local community;

to provide excellent high quality education and experiences for all those who desire a Catholic education, within
the context of our changing society; and

e to foster a sense of collaborative learning and sharing for all across Trust schools; valuing the contributions of

staff, Governors and parents.

Strategies and activities for achieving objectives:

Since the last Annual Report successes have continued as the Trust has:

Celebrated its Catholic faith with staff, Governors and Trustees attending a joint mass at the beginning of the
academic year.

Enabled children across the Trust schools to participate in their Catholic faith with celebrations of the Eucharist in
school and some children have experienced pilgrimage through a visit to Rome.

Continued the St Helen’s and St Joachim’s year 6 science residential camp at the St John Bosco site, enabling
children to study habitats and tree categorisation; participate in orienteering over a large secure area; further develop
independence and friendships in a new setting and experience canoeing and archery.

Encouraged all children to engage in fund raising for charity including supporting the NEWway Homeless project
at St Francis’ for their Advent Appeal; donating food, collected at their Harvest Festival, to those in need at St
Edward’s; holding a Macmillan coffee morning for parents at St Helen’s; and raising funding and homelessness
awareness through a sleep out at St Joachim’s. -
Ensured the children from the schools have participated in Deanery events including: the Armistice Day Service at
East Ham Memorial; the Citizenship project with a theme of “Happy Me”; and the Mini Vinnies festival attended
by inspirational speaker Fr Pascal Uche.

Welcomed one new school, ensuring all consultations and due diligence procedures were adhered to. Value for
money was achieved in using in house expertise for the conversion, saving the Trust approximately £3 000 in
consultancy fees.

Tendered and negotiated an improved payroll and HR contract, saving in excess of £36,500 across the Trust
including for the new school.

Sustained its decision against using staff absence insurance due to excellent staff attendance, averaging over 96%
for all schools. In 2019/20 this saved the Trust approximately £9,000 across the Trust.

Recruited two new high calibre Headteachers within the Trust to ensure excellent leadership is continued in all
schools and provided additional leadership time with new Chief Accounting Officer role.

Completed the expansion St Joachim’s with the official opening of the extension of the £1.9m building programme
with the grant from the Condition Improvement Fund (CIF). St Joachim’s has opened additional classes in year 1
and reception.

Obtained CIF funding of £143,000 for a new b01ler at St Helen’s to ensure all building compliance issues are in
place.

Evaluated and developed capacity for financial management, including the introduction of a new partnership
contribution.

Enhanced its IT capacity with expansion of the service into two additional schools, including St Edward’s, where
focussed planning has ensured value for money in progressing the school’s strategic IT provision.

Delivered on-line learning for all children during the COVID school closure using Google Classroom or Micro-soft
office.

Maintained positions as strategic partners within three Teaching School Alliances, supporting initial teaching
training, ensuring the Schools in the Trust are fully staffed with high quality teachers.

Continued to participate in collaborative schools projects to raise standards, including early years provision,
Citizenship planning and robotics development.
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Trustees' Report (continued)

Strategies and activities for achieving objectives (continued)

‘ Successfully sought external accreditation to ensure high standards and provide assurances for the LGBs and

Trustees; St Edward’s retained outstanding in their section 48 RE inspection; St Francis’ retained the Sainsbury’s
schools sport platinum award; St Helen’s retained outstanding in their section 48 RE inspection along with the
Flagship Inclusion Quality.

Brought Trustees and Governors together to review the effectiveness of the Trust and to develop improved methods
of working together to support the work of the schools.

Remained open throughout the COVID pandemic, offering provision for key worker and vulnerable children during
lockdown and opening more widely to pupils during June and July.

Continued to collaborate throughout the COVID crisis regarding the risk assessment to ensure all schools are safe;
provide additional support and advice to parents and planned to ensure pupil well-being remains a key priority for
2020/21.

Worked tirelessly with all staff and the community to ensure children are able to achieve through accessing exciting,

enriching and memorable experiences.

Public Benefit

The Trustees have considered the Charity Commission’s guidance on public benefit and have complied with their duty
to have due regard to the guidance. The key public benefit delivered by Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust is
the sustainability and development of high quality Catholic education provided by the schools within the Trust.

Strategic Report

- Achievements and Performance

The tables below set out the context of the schools and the key performance indicators benchmarked against national
criteria. The schools also seek external accreditation for their work to validate the leaderships’ judgements.

Key Performance Indicators - Pupils

Inspection St Edward’s ‘St Francis’ St Helen’s St Joachim’s
OFSTED Outstanding (2009) Good (2016) Outstanding (2007) | Outstanding (2007)
Judgement prior to '

conversion

Early Years Provider N/A N/A Outstanding (2014) N/A
Section 48 RE Inspection Qutstanding (2020) | Outstanding (2016) | Outstanding (2020) | Outstanding (2015)

All schools were good or better in their OFSTED and inspection reports before conversion. No school has been inspected

since conversion.

Context — St Edward’s | St Francis’ St Helen’s St Joachim’s National
(January 2020 Census) Average
Number on roll 430 401 493 271 279

% Pupil Premium (disadvantaged) 20% 25% 26% 24% 24%
% SEN support 8% 7% 16% 15% 12%
% from ethnic minorities 95% 95% 95% 97% 32%
% first language not English 72% 43% 59% 89% 21%
School  deprivation indicator 0.34 0.34 0.34 0.34 0.21
(2019)

All schools are located in areas of high deprivation; however this is not reflected in the pupil premium percentages and
does not reflect the high number of families in food and housing poverty. Schools have high levels of pupils with special
educational needs and disabilities (SEND); although the numbers of children for whom their first language is not English

is reducing.
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Trustees' Report (continued)

Key Performance Indicators — Pupils (continued)

Key Stage 2 , St Edward’s | St Francis’ St Helen’s | St Joachim’s National

Average

2019 | 2020 | 2019 | 2020 | 2019 | 2020 | 2019 | 2020 2019
Expected standard in reading 66% | 76% | 75% | 78% | 75% | 85% | 87% | 80% 65%
writing maths RWM
Average progress in reading 0.3 1.3 1.9 3.3
Average progress in writing 1.7 2.2 1.2 3.7
Average progress in maths 1.3 1.9 0.6 4.9
Average scaled score in reading | 105 108 106 104 | 106 106 106 106 105
Average scaled score in maths 106 108 108 106 105 107 108 108 104
High standard of attainment in 31% | 34% | 36% | 20% | 32% | 32% | 20% | 20% 28%
reading
High standard of attainment in 22% | 26% | 31% | 8% | 25% | 23% | 30% | 30% 24%
writing
High standard of attainment in 39% | 32% | 40% | 14% | 37% | 27% | 30% | 30% 13%
maths
High standard of attainment in 12% | 26% | 18% | 4% | 17% | 22% | 13% | 7% 10%
RWM
Attendance 96% 96% 97% 98% 96%

The table above shows that in 2019 most schools’ results were above the national average for attainment and progress.
During 2020 there were no national tests due to the COVID pandemic. Schools in the Trust completed end of year
assessments and bench marked against Fisher Family Trust (FFT) national data. This table shows that schools remained
broadly in line with previous results, although for some schools pupils did not perform as well at higher levels. Trustees
are aware that these assessments have not been moderated and schools may have used different assumption in undertaken
the assessments.

In recognition of curriculum provision schools have sought external validation across many areas including sport, art,
international status, eco awards and inclusion. Most of these external accreditation have been suspended during the

COVID pandemic. However St Edward’s and St Helen’s retained outstanding in their Section 48 RE inspections in
March 2020.

Key Performance Indicators — Financial

The key financial performance indicators set by the Trust are aimed at ensuring the financial viability of the organisation
both short term and longer term. These are: '

setting and operating within a balanced budget as required by the Academies Financial Handbook;

maintaining positive cash flow forecast for at least 12 months ahead;

maintaining appropriate level of revenue reserves at each year end; and

keeping the level of staff cost as a percentage of total costs between 70-80%.

The performance against the key financial performance indicators are summarised below:

Key financial performance 2020721 2020 2019 2018 2017
indicator Target

Balanced budget set & yes yes yes Yes yes
maintained

Positive cash flow forecast for yes yes yes Yes yes
12 month ahead as at 31August

Revenue reserve balance at 31 5%-10% of £1,327k £612k £686k £580k
August total income

Staff cost as a percentage of | Between 70%- 75% 73% 72% 74%
total costs 80%

10
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Trustees' Report (continued)
Financial Review (continued)

Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust has met all its financial key performahce indicators in the reporting periods
ended 31 August 2020 and in all previous periods since incorporation.

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries and acknowledging the uncertainty arising from increasing costs and Government
policy regarding funding, the Trustees have a reasonable expectation that the Trust has adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it continues to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the
Statement of Accounting Policies.

In making this statement the Board of Trustees have taken into due consideration the effects upon the Trust of
the COVID-19 pandemic, the partial closure of the schools during the period and the changes in practices
introduced from the 2020 Autumn term.

Further consideration on the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic
can be found in Note 1.2.

Promoting the success of the company

The Trustees are mindful of the need to act in a way most likely to promote the success of the Trust. They have taken
the following into account:
e The risk management policy and risk registers have been developed to take into account the likely consequences
of any decision in the long term.
e The well-being and interest of the Trusts’ employees are reﬂected in a desire to achieve Investors in People
across the Trust and to ensure well-being policies are promoted by all schools.
e The need to foster the Trust’s relationship with all stakeholders will be promoted through a new Trust website
and promotion of the Trust’s schools through enhanced marketing to increase pupil numbers.
¢ The impact of the Trust’s operations on the community and the environment are reflected in the support provided
for the Catholic communities and the schoo!l’s desire to reduce paper and printing usage.
¢ The desirability of the Trust maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct by establishing a
Quality of Education committee and appointing a dedicated CAO to ensure business compliance and consistency
across the Trust.

Financial Review

The Trust’s pfincipal financial management policies are in line with the Academies Financial Handbook published by
the ESFA and are described in the trust’s Financial Regulations approved by the Board of Trustees.

The Trustees believe that the Trust has maintained a positive and strong financial position throughout its operation as
indicated by the maintenance of its healthy revenue reserves balance.

The Trust’s mid-term financial planning indicates positive financial outlook for the next 3-5 years ahead despite the
uncertainties faced with regards to funding levels (e.g. SEND funding), increasing staffing costs and the growth of the
Trust.

The Trust has made a deficit of £1,667,000, (2018/19: deficit of £1,298,000) in the year (excluding actuarial loss of
£602,000, 2018/19: actuarial loss of £875,000), primarily due to the £2,180,000 LGPS deficit inherited on conversion
with regards to the two new academies who joined the Trust on 1 September 2020.

Although the Trust is budgeting a small in year deficit for 2020/21, it is expected to maintain positive revenue reserves

for the next 3 years ahead. Reserves are expected to reduce over the coming years due to increasing staff costs, however
detailed resource planning is completed annually to ensure the staff establishment is financial viable.

11
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Trustees' Report (continued)

Financial Review (continued)

At 31 August 2020, the Trust had net assets excluding pension liability of £1,803,000 (2018/19: £769,000) and pension
liability of £7,660,000 (2018/19: £4,357,000). The Trust recognised an actuarial loss with regards to its Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) of £602,000 (2018/19: actuarial loss of £875,000) in the year (refer to note 29).
The LGPS liability is long term and neither relate to cash obligations or impact on the going concern of the Trust.

The principal source of funding is the General Annual Grant (GAG) and other grants received from the ESFA (e.g. pupil
premium) and the London Borough of Newham. Grant income of £11,112,000 (2018/19:£5,302,000) has been received
from the ESFA and the London Borough of Newham in the year ended 31 August 2020. CIF capital grant of £143,000
was received in 2019/20 for St Helen’s boiler replacement project and £25,000 has been received from LCVAP for
various projects in Set Edward’s and St Francis’ (2018/19: CIF capital grant £178,000 for the water pipe replacement
works at St Joachim’s ).

The Trust has also received £312,000 (2018/19:£191,000) other restricted income primarily from parental contributions
towards educational visits and extended school provision.

All expenditure incurred funded by the restricted general funds was in support of the Trust’s key objective of the
provision of education.

The Trust has also received unrestricted income from other sources of £785,000 (2018/19:£25,000) during the year,
which included £745,000 cash transfer on conversion (2018/19: £nil) and had carried a surplus of £1,063,000
(2018/19:£279,000) forward which is being used as a contingency to cover increased expenditure or lower income in
future years and contribute to the Trust’s capital projects in the coming years. In addition, the Trust will use its
accumulated reserves to fund £150,000 of St Joachim’s expansion project, which have been advanced by the ESFA and
repaid by the Trust over 7 years from reserves.

The Trust held fund balances as follows at the year-end:

Restricted Funds 31 August 2020 31 August 2019
: £000 £000

Fixed assets funds 476 156
General funds 264 333
Pension reserve deficit (7,660) (4,357)
Total restricted funds (6,920) (3,868)
Unrestricted funds : 1,063 279
Total funds ‘ (5,857) (3,588)

At 31 August 2020 the net book value of fixed assets was £537,000 (2019: £306,000) and the movement in fixed assets
are shown in note 12 and 13 of these accounts. The assets were used exclusively for providing education and associated
services to the pupils of the Schools.

The academies operated from freehold and leasehold land and buildings which are held by the Diocese of Brentwood.
The Trust’s accounting policy in relation to the treatment of land and buildings owned/leased by the Diocese of
Brentwood as detailed on page 33.

Reserves Policy

Academies are expected to hold contingency reserves from their annual GAG funding or other income, which may be
both capital and revenue reserves.

Revenue reserves are held to fund future expenditure related to the MAT Development Plan’s strategic long-term aims
and developments, while capital reserves represent the fund of the Trust that are held as fixed assets. As the DfE provides
minimal funding in the way of Devolved Formula Capital Grant at present the majority of capital projects have been
funded from restricted or unrestricted general funds.

12
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Trustees' Report (continued)

Reserves Policy (continued)

The policy of the Trust is to carfy forward a prudent level of resources designed to meet the long-term cyclical needs of
renewal and any other unforeseen contingencies.

The Trust’s reserves are detailed in the Financial Review above and also in notes 18 and 19 of these accounts.

The Trust’s free reserves (considered to be the restricted general funds and unrestricted funds excluding the pension
reserve) amounted to £1,327,000 (2019:£612,000) at 31 August 2020.

The Trustees consider the target level of reserves on an annual basis as part of the strategic and financial planning
process, which is documented in the Trust’s reserves policy. The Trustees have agreed that the acceptable level of
revenue reserves should be in a range of 5%-10% of total Trust income. This level of revenue reserves are considered
adequate to provide sufficient resources to enable the planned growth in the Trust as a result of new schools joining over
the coming years, fund potential capital project if external funding is not accessible and to ensure that the advance from
ESFA for the completed expansion project at St Joachim’s is repayable. The actual free reserves of the Trust have met
the target range as at 31 August 2020, which was welcomed by the Trustees.

The Trust will be using £150,000 of its free reserves to fund the GAG advance due from the ESFA for St Joachim’s.
No schools in the Trust had negative free reserves at 31 August 2020 and at 31 August 2019.

Investment Policy

The Trustees aim to manage the Trust’s cash balances to provide for the day-to-day working capital requirements of its
operations, whilst protecting the real long-term value of any surplus cash balances against inflation.

The Trustees aim to: _
e invest surplus cash funds to optimise returns, but ensuring the investment instruments are such that there is no
risk to the loss of these cash funds; and
e spend the public monies with which it is entrusted for the direct education benefit of students as soon as is
prudent.

The Trustees do not consider the investment of surplus funds as a primary activity, rather it is the result of good
stewardship as and when circumstances allow. Monies surplus to the working requirements may be.invested in a higher
interest bearing account allowing access to funds within a term not exceeding three months.

Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust has opened a 32 day notice deposit account in the' 2018/19 financial year
and had a deposit balance of £475,000 as at 31 August 2020 (2019: £225,000). The deposit account generates interest at
0.01% p.a (2019:0.75%).  The interest generated during the reporting period amounted to £1,124.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Based on the strategic plan for each academy, the Headteachers, Governors and Trustees have undertaken a
comprehension review of the risks to which the Trust may be exposed in line with the Risk Management Policy. Risks
that may have a negative impact on the Trust, have been identified and recorded in the risk register, which details all the
policies and procedures that the Trust has implemented to reduce risk and uncertainties.

The Trust’s strategic risk map is reviewed and updated annually in line with the agreed risk management policy and
procedures.

The risk register has been updated to take account of COVID uncertainties and risks as detailed in the table below:
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Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust

Trustees' Report (continued)
Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)

The key risks identified by the trust are as follows:

No. | Risks Key control measures

1 Fall in number of pupils on roll Additional advertising of vacancies is in through parish
newsletters and school websites.

Open days or virtual tours (dependent on COVID risks) are
undertaken for 2021 admissions.

Local Authority application lists are reviewed weekly to fill
vacancies.

Trustees have reviewed the Local Authority birth rates and
prediction for five years and remain confident that schools
will continue to be financially stable.

For nursery rolls which are more volatile schools offer paid
places to meet any funding shortfalls.

Additional marketing strategies .in place for 2020/21 to
promote Catholic education.

2 Negligence claim due to child protection or | Comprehensive risk assessments, H&S policies and

H&S failure : procedures, member of RPA, Child Protection and
: Safeguarding procedures and training to all staff.
3 Non-compliance with funding agreement Highly skilled staff, key advisors appointed, robust
reporting to highly skilled trustees.
4 Absence of key personnel Clear organisational structure, experienced SLT and sharing
of expertise across the Trust
5 Fraud or theft Robust Financial Regulations and procedures. Anti-fraud

policy, external and internal audits.

Robust financial reporting to LGBs/Board of Trustees.

6. | Mismanagement of MAT expansion Highly experienced Trustees, Diocesan and professional
advisors; due diligence regarding finance - and land
arrangements; planned phased entry into ensure capacity for
key function, finance, HR and IT.

Experienced key personnel for MAT compliance.

Excellent historical supportive working relationship
between schools to join Our Lady of Grace.

7. | COVID related long term staff absences for | Schools have all undertaken detailed site risk assessments
education and finance for pupil and staff contact; cleaning regimes and manging
staff / pupils with symptoms.

Bubbles operate to reduce risk of whole school closure.

All schools proven ability to deliver high quality on line
teaching with access to devices for pupils.

Remote access is available for finance staff to ensure
continuity of all business functions.

Sufficient reserves are available across the Trust to manage
additional cleaning expenses.

Governance at all levels is continuing through on-line
conferencing facilities.

The schools have high levels of financial expertise to ensure excellent internal controls exist and to ensure risk is
significantly reduced in all financial matters. High levels of monitoring and reporting are in place to manage the cash
flow of the schools. : ‘
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Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust

Trustees' Report (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)

The schools’ assets are detailed above in financial review and the Directors consider that there are sufficient funds
available to meet all liabilities given that the LGPS creditor is unlikely to crystallise in the near future; the material
liability being the LGPS of £7,660,000 (2019:£4,357,000). The Trust’s main financial instruments are its bank balances,
trade creditors and minimal debtor balances, which are managed as part of the robust monthly financial monitoring and
reporting process.

The schools have three year budget plans in place to consider any potential shortfalls in funding that may arise and to
prioritise any surpluses that may accrue due to savings or additional income.

Fundraising

The Trust’s fundraising approach focuses on the fundraising friends groups (Parent Teacher Associations/’PTA”)
operating in all schools. Schools within the Trust have fundraising and friends groups, including Friend of St Teddy’s;
St Francis’ Fund (Newham) (charity number 1173650); Friends of St Helen’s (FOSH) (charity number: 1126941); and
Friends of St Joachim’s (FOSJA). The Headteachers liaise closely with the friends groups and they provide funds for
their school.

In addition, two of the schools have an online Easyfundraising cause page, which generates donations when patrons
shop online. Easyfundraising is a charity support organisation providing a fundraising channel for charities and schools.
The level of income generated thought this channel is negligible.

The Trust does not use or employ professional fundraiser and the monitoring of fundraising activities are undertaken by
the Headteachers. ‘

The Trust has not received any complaints relating to its fundraising activities and it is aware of its role in protecting the
public, including vulnerable people, from unreasonably intrusive or persistent fundraising approaches.

Plans for Future Periods

In line with the key objectives outlined above, the Trustees aim to:

¢ Expand the Trust during 2020/21 to incorporate an additional school, in line with the development programme
within the Diocese.

e Focus on excellent educational provision, taking account of schools’ recovery curricular, pupil well-being,
embedding black and culturally relevant history themes across schools; undertaking peer reviews throughout
the trust and enhancing subject leader collaboration to ensure standards remain above the national average across
Trust schools o

¢ Developing a Trust estate management strategy including completion of the CIF a boiler replacement project at
St Helen’s and bidding for RAAC replacement at St Francis’, further pipework replacement at St Helen’s and
flat roof repair and replacement at St Joachim’s.

e Proactively recruit new pupils through welcoming school visits from prospective parents and ensuring additional
places are publicised within the local area.

e Continue to raise standards in reading, writing and maths across the schools through the allocation of funding
for additional resources and professional development and rigorous monitoring of the impact of interventions.

¢ Continue to work together as a Trust and with Deanery schools to promote a Catholic ethos with an Armistice
Day Service, Citizenship Projects, Mini Vinnie collaborations and secondary transition projects.

e Tender for whole Trust contracts in catering and estate management during 2020/21 to achieve contract
alignment and economies of scale.

e Implement a central budget and services to provide value for money across the Trust and efficiency of services.

e In conjunction with, Initial Teacher Training Partnerships and Teaching School Alliance, build on existing
practices to develop and train staff, to ensure a supply of good staff to for future years.

¢ Develop further collaboration between subject leaders through joint training and planning meetings, to share
good practice and to raise standards across both schools, including SEND.
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Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust

Trustees' Report (continued)
Plans for Future Periods (continued)

e Explore grant funding opportunities for extra curriculum project and community events.

e Further develop and expand the Trust’s IT support service with additional employees to ensure capacity and
consistency across all schools, enabling access to devices for all pupils and high quality on-line learning in the
event of partial closure.

+ Ensure parents are informed in all Trust Schools of the success and benefits of being within the Trust through
the development of a new Trust website and additional marketing strategies.

The Diocese of Brentwood has adopted a policy to develop eight Multi-Academy Trusts largely based on Deaneries.
Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust’s leadership now includes a group comprising of the Newham Deanery
Primary Headteachers and one Secondary Head. This group provides advice and recommendations to the Trustees.
Additionally the Leadership Group (comprises of Trustees, Chairs of LGBs and Headteachers) was formed in 2019/20.
It is planned to develop this group in 2020/21 as key stakeholders who will inform and shape the Trust’s strategy
direction and future.

Funds Held as Custodian Trustee on Behalf of Others
There are no funds held on behalf of others and the Trust does not act as custodian trustees for any other party.
Auditor
Insofar as the Trustees are aware:
¢ there is no relevant audit information of which the Charitable Company's Auditor is unaware; and
o the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit

information and to establish that the Auditor is aware of that information.

Trustees' Report, incorporating a Strategic Report, was approved by the Board of Trustees, as the Company Directors,
on 9 December 2020 and signed on the Board's behalf by: .

4“ S
Mc&ﬁ;ﬂgﬂiaﬁ)ec 15, 2020, 1:54pm)

Chair of Trustees
9 December 2020
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Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust

Governance Statement

Scope of Responsibility

As Trustees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy
Trust has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we are in the process of reviewing and taking into account of the guidance in DfE’s Governance Handbook
and competency framework for governance.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the one of the Headteachers, G Hicks, as
Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement
between Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. She is also responsible
for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the Statement
of Trustees' Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met four times during the year. Attendance during the

year at was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of possible
.~ J P Anthony 4 4
M Coleman (Chair) 4 4
K Fernett 2 4
R Gabrasadig 3 4
E Okpanachi 4 4
K Reilly 1 3
C Warnick (Vice Chair) 4 5
.S Webb 4 5

The Board met fewer than six times during the year. The Board is satisfied that through the use of sub-committees it
maintains effective oversight of funds. Details of the sub-committees are noted below.

The Board of Trustees listed above, who were in post in the reporting year, includes two new Trustees, who were
appointed on 1 September 2019 (R Gabrasadig and E Okpanachi).

The review of governance structure, as recorded in the Scheme of Delegation, is reviewed annually by the Board of

Trustees including a self-evaluation and external. Based on the size of the Trust, the governance structure is deemed

appropriate and effective. The Board, along with local Governors and school leadership, plan to review the current
scheme to ensure the scheme is appropriate for an expanded Trust.

The Finance, Audit and Risk Committee (FAR) is a sub-committee of the Board of Directors. Additionally in 2019/20
a quality of education sub-committee was established to provide Trustees with an overview of standards.

The role of the FAR Committee is to advise the Board of Trustees on the comprehensiveness and effectiveness of the
Trust's assurance framework. In particular the FAR Committee advises and supports the Board in fulfilling its roles and
responsibilities, including its responsibility for providing the assurances required in the Accounting Officer’s Statement
of Regularity, Propriety and Compliance in the annual financial statements.

The FAR Committee has the authority to investigate any activity within its terms of reference, and has right of access to
obtain all the information and explanations it considers necessary, from whatever source, to fulfil its remit.
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Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust

Governance Statement (continued)

Governance (continued)

One of the key responsibilities of the FAR Committee is to review and monitor the Trust’s budget and approve all key
policies. The Principal Finance Officer, G Callegari, a qualified accountant, reports to this Committee.

Attendance at FAR Committee meetings in the year was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of possible
M Coleman (Vice Chair) 4 4
K Fernett 2 4
R Gabrasadig 3 4
S Webb (Chair of FAR) 4 4

Review of Value for Money

As Accounting Officer, G Hicks, has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good value in the use of public
resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider societal
outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during each
academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use of
benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer has delivered improved value for money during the year

by:

Competitive tendering of the HR and Payroll Services contract for the Trust’s and other affiliated schools. The
new contract is starting on 1 September 2020 and is estimated to deliver approximately £48,000 annual saving
for the 6 schools involved whilst providing improved quality of service.

Competitive tendering of the Trust’s facilities management service level agreement achieving a more favourable -
pricing structure and saving around £2,000-£3,000 a year going forward on these services. In addition, the Trust
developed in-house staff expertise in procurement/tender co-ordination achieving approximately £7,000 saving
on consultancy fees in the year. '
Employing the Trust’s own network manager to undertake the website updates continues to save the Trust
£2,000 annually. Additional the Trust was able to provide services to a third school recovering an additional
£8,300 for the Trust.

Extending the Trust’s IT support service to another Trust school £3,500 was saved through tendering for smart
panels to enhance the quality of teaching across the school.

Utilising resources available for free or low cost, which enrich the curriculum and free travel for educational
visits where possible. '

Achieving high staff attendance and managing staffing within the schools to negate the need for supply staff.
Using the school’s own staff ensures continuity in provision for the education of the children, contributes to
pupil well-being and enables them to achieve highly. Low staff sickness rates overtime lead to the Trust not
utilising staff absence insurance, thereby saving approximately £4,500 across trust schools within the year.
Operating as strategic partners within teaching school alliances, schools receive free and reduced cost
professional development of a range of staff.

Participating in the school direct programme for initial teacher training, trainees are recruiting to the schools as
newly qualify teachers, reducing advertising costs.

Constantly reviewing suppliers for good quality and value resources, including on line purchases where
appropriate and ensuring budget holders comply with the quotation limits set out in the financial procedures.
Employing school cleaners rather than using a cleaning contract will save in the region of £45,000-£50,000 in
the coming year in one school in the Trust. The high cost of cleaning was identified through benchmarking and
due diligence on conversion.

Saving made in paper, printing and photocopying during school closures and on-line learning resulted in savings
of £5,200 across the Trust.

Negotiating with one of the Trust’s catering companies; ensured a reduction in meal price from £2.30 to £1.50
during school closures, result in savings in excess of £13,000 across two schools, due to COVID closures.
Proactively negotiating with residential educational providers to move deposits paid in 2019/20 into 2020/21
and reviewing all contracts to ensure only services received were paid for during COVID closures.
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Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust

Governance Statement (continued)

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure
to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks
to the achievement of Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the
impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The system of internal control has been in place in Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust for the period 1
September 2019 to 31 August 2020 and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and financial statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with the operating, financial
and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is of the view that
there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Trust's significant risks that has been in
place for the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and
financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.

The Risk and Control Framework

The Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountabrhty In particular
it includes:

e comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which
are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;

. regular reviews by the finance, risk and audit committee of reports which indicate financial performance against

the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

delegation of authority and segregation of duties; and

identification and management of risks.

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided to appoint an
established accountancy firm, Price Bailey LLP, to provide both external and mternal audit services for the Trust for the
2019/20 financial year.

Price Bailey’s role as internal auditor includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on
the Trust's financial systems. In the year Price Bailey has completed a supplementary assurance review on the following
risk areas identified by the Trustees:

o effectiveness and efficiency of key financial controls in place:
e processes reviewed included: cash management, raising orders, supplier data management, use of purchasing
cards, payment processes,

No significant weaknesses were identified by the supplementary audit review.

On an annual basis, as part of their statutory audit, the Auditor reports to the Board of Trustees, through the FAR
Committee on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees' financial
responsibilities.

No material control issues or weaknesses have been reported during the year and a number of areas of good practise
were highlighted.

19
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Governance Statement (continued)

The Risk and Control Framework (continued)

During the COVID partial closure all schools continued to operate all financial controls either through rota working or
working from home. All local finance and FAR committee meetings took place via zoom meetings to ensure regular
and timely monitoring at a governance level could take place efficiently.

Due to changes in the Ethical Standard published by the Financial Reporting Council, Price Bailey LLP will not be re-
appointed to undertake the supplementary assurance review in 2020/21 (being the Trust’s external auditors), therefore
the Trustees are in the process of selecting another reputable professional firm to undertake this review in the future.

Review of Effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, G Hicks, has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control.
During the year in question the review has been informed by:

< the work of the external Auditor;

» the outcome of the supplementary assurance review undertaken by the Internal Auditor;

+ the financial management and governance self-assessment process which was undertaken by the FAR
Committee in the year; and ' _

» the work of the Principal Finance Officer within the Trust who has responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal control
by the FAR Committee and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

' Approved by the Board of Trustees on 9 December 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

e s 44

Ggel Hicks (Dec 15, 2020, 1:33pm)

Mick Coleman (Dec 15, 2020, 1:54pm)

M Coleman , G Hicks

Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer

9 December 2020 . - 9 December 2020
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Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust

Statement of Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As Accounting Officer of Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust I have considered my responsibility to notify the
Board of Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-
compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the Trust, under the funding agreement in place between
the Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration I have had due regard to the requirements

of the Academies Financial Handbook 2019.

I confirm that I and the Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of all funds by the
Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Trust's funding agreement and the

Academies Financial Handbook 2019.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to date.
If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of Trustees and ESFA.

MILW

Gael Hicks (Dec 15, 2020, 1:33pm)

G Hicks
Accounting Officer

9 December 2020
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Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust

Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities

The Trustees (who are also the Directors of the Charitable Company for the purposes of company law) are responsible
for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction
published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law the
Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Charitable Company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its
income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

» observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to
2020;

+ make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Charitable Company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Charitable Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Charitable Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Charitable Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. :

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the Charitable Company applies financial and
other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They are also
responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on
the Charitable Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by the Board of Trustees on 9 December 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

/ﬁ__ ...... —

Mick Coleman (Dec 15, 2020, 1:54pm)
M Coleman

Chair of Trustees

9 December 2020
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Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy
Trust

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Our Lady of Grace Academy Trust (the ‘Trust’) for the year ended 31
August 2020 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating Income and Expenditure Account, the
Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flows and related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland, the Charities SORP
2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the Education & Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the Trust’s affairs as at 31 August 2020, and of its incoming resources and
application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP 2019 and
the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the Education & Skills Funding Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the academy trust in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to
you where: :

o the Trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or .

e the Trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the Trust’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period
of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our Auditors' Report thereon. Other information includes the
Trustees' Report including the Strategic Report, the Governance Statement and the Accounting Officer's Statement. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our Report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy
Trust (continued)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

¢ the information given in the Trustees’ Report (incorporating the Strategic Report) for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
e the Strategic Report and the Trustees Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Trust and its environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Report and the Trustees’ Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you if, in our opinion:

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or
¢ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
" certain disclosures of Trustees remuneration specified by law are not made; or
e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the trustees’ responsibilities statement set out on page 17, the trustees (who are also the
directors of the academy trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the academy trust’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the academy trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy
Trust (continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report. -

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the academy trust’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the academy trust’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted '
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the academy trust and the academy trust s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Mr Gary Miller (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of

Price Bailey LLP
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditors
Causeway House
Dane Street

Bishops Stortford
Hertfordshire

CM23 3BT

Date: 9 December 2020
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Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to Our Lady of
Grace Catholic Academy Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 7 November 2018 and further to the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020, we have
carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by
Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust during the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have been applied
to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them]l

This report is made solely to Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust
and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust and
ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust's Accounting Officer and the
Reporting Accountant

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 20 March 2015 and the Academies Financial Handbook,
extant from 1 September 2019, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance and
are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the
Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying
out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period
1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by ESFA.
We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and explanations
in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in

a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy Trust's income and expenditure.
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Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to Our Lady of
Grace Catholic Academy Trust and the Education Funding Agency (continued)

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

e An assessment of the risk of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance

e Consideration and corroboration of the evidence supporting the Accounting Officers statement on regularity,
propriety and compliance and how the Trust complies with the framework of authorities.

e Evaluation of the general control environment of the Trust, extending the procedures required for financial
statements to include regularity, propriety and compliance.

¢ Discussions with and representations from the Accounting Officer and other key management personnel.

e An extension of substantive testing from our audit of the financial statements to cover matters pertaining to
regularity, in order to support the regularity conclusion, including governance, internal controls, procurement
and the application of income ‘

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the expenditure
disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 has not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Reporting Accountant

Price Bailey LLP
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditors

Causeway House
1 Dane Street
Bishop’s Stortford
Herts CM23 3BT

9 December 2020
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Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust

Statement of Financial Activities
for the year ended 31 August 2020

(including the Income and Expenditure Account)

Restricted Restricted

Unrestricted general fixed assets Total Total
funds funds funds 2019/20 2018/19
Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Income and endowments
from:
Donations and capital grant 2 18 533 307 858 419
Transfer from Local Authority 33 745 (2180) 190 (1,245) -
on conversion
Charitable activities: -
Funding for the Trust’s 3 - 11,131 - 11,131 5,270
educational operations
Teaching Schools 3,32 - 195 - 195 -
Other trading activities 4 21 6 - 27 22
Investments 5 2 ' - - 2 3
Total 785 9,685 497 10,967 5,714
Expenditure on:
Raising funds 6 1 - - 1 5
Charitable activities:
Grants 6,7 T - 54 54 1,276
Trust’s educational 6,8 - 12,222 158 12,379 5,732
operations
Teaching Schools 32 - 200 - 200 -
Other - - - - -
Total 6 1 12,422 211 12,634 7,013
Net income/(expenditure) 784 2,737) 286 (1,667) (1,298)
Transfer between funds - (34) 34 - -
Other recognised gains and
(losses)
Actuarial (losses)/gains on '
defined benefit pension 30 - (602) - (602) (875)
schemes
Net movement in funds 784 3,372) 320 (2,269) 2,173)
Reconciliation of funds: '
Total funds brought forward 19 279 (4,024) 156 (3,588) (1,415)
Total funds carried forward 1,063 (7,397) 476 (5,857) (3,588)

All activities relate to continuing operations.
The Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the reporting period.

The notes on pages 31 to 54 form part of these financial statements.
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Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust

Balance Sheet as at 31 August 2020

Company Number: 09435396

2020 2020 2019 2019
Notes £000 £°000 £000 £000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 13 - 1
Tangible assets 14 537 305
537 306
Current assets
Stock ' 15 18 ‘ 15
Debtors 16 2,059 906
Cash at bank and in hand 2,364 . 815
4,441 1,736
Liabilities ‘
Creditors: Amounts falling due within 17
one year (1,993) : (838)
Net current assets . 2,449 899
Total assets less current liabilities 2,985 1,205
Creditors: Amounts falling due after 18 (1,183) 437)
more than one year )
Net assets excluding pension liability 1,803 » 769
Defined benefit pension scheme 30 (7,660) ' (4,357)
liability :
Total net liabilities (5,857) (3,588)
Funds of the Trust:
Restricted funds -
Fixed asset fund ‘ 19 476 156
General fund 19 263 o 333
Pension reserve 19 (7,660) (4,357)
Total restricted funds (6,920) (3,868)
Unrestricted income funds 19 1,063 279
Total funds 19,20 (5,857) (3,588)

The financial statements on pages 28-54 were approved by the Trustees and authorised for issue on 9 December 2020
and are signed on their behalf by

M

MR 6RamaniDec 15, 2020, 1:54pm)
Chair of Trustees
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Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 August 2020

Notes

2020 2019
£000 £000

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 23 603 (1,332)
Cash flows from financing activities 24 835 -
Cash flows from investing activities 25 111 130
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period 1,549 (1,202)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 2019 815 815
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2020 26 2,364 815
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Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2020

1. Statement of accounting policies

A summary of the principal accountmg policies adopted (which have been applied consnstently, except where noted),
judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

11 Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS102, have been prepared under the
historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland (FRS102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities
preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland
(FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by ESFA, the Charities
Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.
The accounts are presented in Sterling and rounded to the nearest £1,000.

1.2 Going Concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material uncertainties related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern. The
Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the
financial statements and have concluded that the Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, thus they
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

The Trust has been affected to a limited extent by restrictions imposed by the UK Government in response to the COVID-
19 pandemic.

The Trust derives the majority of its income from local and national government grant funding which is secured for a
number of years, under the terms of the Academy Funding Agreement with the Secretary of State for Education. This will
ensure that the Trust can continue operating for a period of at least 12 months following the date of this report. The financial
statements do not contain any adjustments that would be required if the Trust were not able to continue as a going concern.
In reaching their conclusions on the continued adoption of the going concern basis the Trustees have taken account of the
fact that the financial Statements show net liabilities of £5,857,000. These liabilities are caused by the LGPS pension
deficit of £7,660,000. As noted in the Trustees’ Report this deficit does not mean that an immediate liability for the amount
crystallises but does result in a cash flow effect in the form of increased employer contrlbutlons over a number of years,

all of which are included within the Trust’s normal operating budget.

1.3 Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is probable and the amount
can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income received for
specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the Balance Sheet. Where income
is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income
and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are
met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant (GAG) is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is
receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability. As per the
Trust’s funding agreement with the ESFA, there are no limits on'the amounts of GAG that the Trust is permitted to carry
forward from one year to the next.
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Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

1. Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is unconditional entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset
on which they are expended. Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance in the restricted fixed asset fund.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where the receipt is
probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other Income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the Trust has
provided the goods or services.

1.3 Income (continued)

Donated goods, facilities and services

Donated facilities and services provided to the Trust are recognised at their value to the Trust in the period when it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the donated items will flow to the Trust, provided they can be
measured reliably. An equivalent amount is included as expenditure under the relevant heading in the Statement of
Financial Activities. '

Donated goods are recognised at fair value unless it is impractical to measure this reliably i which case a derived value,
being the cost of the item to the donor is used. An equivalent amount is included as expenditure under the relevant
heading in the Statement of Financial Activities except where the donated good is a fixed asset in which case the gain is
recognised as income from donations and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category
and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the Trust's accounting policies.

The freehold land donated to the Trust on conversion by the London Borough of Newham for a £nil consideration has
been recognised as Donation — transfer from Local Authority on conversion with a corresponding amount showing in
fixed assets as freehold land. The value of the land has been derived from the valuation undertaken by an independent
professional property surveyor.

Transfer on conversion ,

Where assets and liabilities are received by the Trust on conversion to an academy, the transferred assets are measured
at fair value and recognised in the Balance Sheet at the point when the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the
Academy Trust. An equal amount of income is recognised as transfer on conversion within donations and capital grant
income to the net assets received.

1.4 Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third party, it
is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the obligation can be
measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs
and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity.

Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more
than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities
on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and
depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Expenditure on Raising Funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and includes costs of all
fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

32



Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

1. Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Charitable Activities
These are costs incurred on the Trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs relating to the

governance of the Trust apportioned to charitable activities.

1.5 Intangible Fixed Assets

Intangible assets costing £2,000 or more are capitalised and recognised when future economic benefits are probable and
the cost or value of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and are
subsequently measured at cost net of amortisation and any provision for impairment. Amortisation is provided on
intangible fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected
useful life, as follows:

*  Purchased computer software 5 years (20% p.a.)

1.6 Tangible Fixed Assets

Assets costing £2,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any
provision for impairment. This includes individual asset items over the capitalisation threshold as well as closely related

group of IT assets (e.g. a trolley of laptops).

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the Government or from the
private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful economic life.
Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are
credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet.
Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial
Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged
to the unrestricted fund. :

The Trust occupies land and buildings provided to it by the Diocesan Trustees under a license (also referred to as a Church
Supplementary Agreement) which contains a two year notice period. Having considered the fact that the Trust occupies
the land and buildings by a license that transfers to the Trust no right or control over the site save that of occupying it at
the will of the Diocesan Trustees under the agreement, the Trustees have concluded that the value of the land and
buildings occupied by the trust will not be recognised or valued within fixed assets.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed as'sets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off the cost of
each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

* Freehold land Nil

« Fixtures, fittings and equipment 5 years (20% p.a.)

¢ Computer hardware 3 years (33.3% p.a.)
« Motor vehicles 5 years (20% p.a.)

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until they are brought
into use. Capital improvements to Diocesan owned property are recognised as expenditure.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and their
recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial
Activities incorporating the Income and Expenditure Accounts.
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Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)
1. Statement of accounting policies (continued)
1.7 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is probable
that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement can be estimated
reliably. Liabilities (including termination benefits) are recognised at the amount that the Trust anticipates it will pay to
settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods of services it must provide.

1.8 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past event which it is
probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time
value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax
discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest
payable and similar charges.

1.9 Leased Assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.
1.10 Financial Instruments

The Trust holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS102. The financial assets and financial liabilities of the
trust and their measurement bases are as follows:

e Financial assets — trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at
amortised cost. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

e Cash at bank — is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

e Financial liabilities — trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at
amortised costs. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.
Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and
there is no obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

1.11 Stock

Stationery bought in advance of the academic year and unsold uniform are recognised as stocks and are valued at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

1.12 Taxation

The Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and therefore it meets
the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within

categories covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable
Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

1.13  Pensions Benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme (‘'TPS') and the Local
Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.
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Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

1. Statement of accounting policies (continued)

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees'
working lives with the Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future
pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations
using a prospective unit credit method. The TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to
assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes
and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Trust in separate
trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial
basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high
quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least
triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to net income/(expenditure) are the current
service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as
part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of
Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme
assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations.

The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised
in other recognised gains and losses. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains
and losses.

1.14  Fund Accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects
of the Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by funders where
the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/donor and
primarily include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency and London Borough of Newham.

1.15  Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Trustees make estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates and
assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

The present value of the LGPS defined benefit liability depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial
basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include
the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore
a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has
been used by the Actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2020. Any differences between the figures
derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension
liability.

Critical areas of judgement
Currently there are no critical judgements to disclose, other than those mentioned above and in note 14 regarding

exclusion of land and buildings from the Trust’s Balance Sheet.
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Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

2. Donations and capital grants
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2019/20 2018/19
£000 £000 £000 £°000
Capital grants - 239 239 223
Notional rent (see note 30) - 527 527 189
Other donations 18 74 92 6
18 840 858 419

In 2018/19 capital grants of £223,000 was in relation to restricted fixed asset funds and notional rent income was
£189,000, all of which was restricted. In 2018/19 income from other donations was £6,000, of which £5,000 was
unrestricted and £1,000 was restricted.

Other donations primarily include donations for capital projects by the St Francis’ Fund (charity) and St Edward’s friends
of school.

3. Funding for the Trust’s educational operations

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2019/20 2018/19
£000 £000 £000 £000
DfE/EFA grants '
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 8,077 8,077 3,877
Other DfE/ESFA grants - 1,105 1,105 411
* Teaching School Grant 94 94 -
- : 9,276 9,276 4,287
Other government grants : S
Local Authority grants - 1,597 1,597 787
Other Government grants .- 6 6 6
- 1,603 1,603 792 |
Exceptional government funding
Coronavirus exceptional support . - 34 34 -
- 34 34 -
- Other income from the Trust's o
educational operations - 312 312 191
Teaching School - 101 101 -
- 11,326 11,326 5,270

In 2018/19, all the income from charitable activities related to restricted funds. There were no unfulfilled conditions for
grants recognised in the reporting period.

The Academy Trust has been eligible to claim additional funding in year from Government support schemes in response
to the coronavirus outbreak. The funding received is shown above under “exceptional Government funding”.

The funding received for coronavirus exceptional support covers £34k of additional cleaning and FSM voucher costs.
These costs are included in notes 6,7 and 8 below as appropriate. The Trust had not furloughed any of its staff under
the Government’s CJRS, therefore no funding was received with regards to staff costs.

4. Other trading activities

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2019/20 2018/19

£°000 £000 £°000 £°000

Hire of facilities 3 - 3 3
Uniform sale L. - - 7
Income for professional services 13 - 13 3
Other 5 6 11 10
21 6 27 22
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Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

4. Other trading activities (continued)

These activities principally relate to charitable and ancilliary trading. In 2018/19, of total income from other trading
activites, £16,000 was unrestricted and £6,000 was restricted. In 2018/19, facilities income was £3,000 of which all was
unrestricted. In 2018/19, uniform income was £7,000 of which all was unrestricted. In 2018/19, professional services
income was £3,000 of which all was unrestricted. In 2018/19, other income was £10,000 of which £4,000 was
unrestricted and £6,000 was restricted.

S. Investment income

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2019/20 2018/19

£000 £000 £°000 £°000

Interest on current accounts 1 - 1 1
Interest on short term deposits 1 - 1 2
2 - 2 3

In 2018/19, all investment income related to unrestricted funds.

6. Expenditure
Non pay expenditure

Staff cost Premises Other Total Total
‘ 2019/20 2018/19
£000 £000 : £000 £000 £°000
Expenditure on raising funds: :

- Direct costs - - 1 1 5
Grants - 54 - 54 1,276

Trust’s educational operations: '
- Direct costs " 8,259 156 ' 766 9,181 4,208
- Allocated support costs 1,111 1,165 922 3,198 1,524
Teaching School 104 - 96 200 -
9,475 1,375 1,784 12,634 7,013

In 2018/19, of the total expenditure, £5,000 was to unrestricted funds, £5,650,000 was to restricted funds and £1,358,000

was to restricted fixed asset funds.
In 2018/19, expendituré on raising funds consisted of £5,000 other expenditure and grants expenditure of £1,276,000

related to premises costs.
In 2018/19 educational operations direct costs consisted of £3,626,000 staff costs, £80,000 permises costs and £502,000

other expenditure. In addition, 2018/19 support costs consisted of £585,000 staff costs, £410,000 premises costs and
£529,000 other expenditure.

Net income / (expenditure) for the period includes:

2019/20 2018/19

£°000 £000

Operating lease rentals 13 9

Depreciation on fixed assets owned by the Trust 156 80

Amortisation of intangible assets 1 2
Fees payable to Auditors for:

- audit 18 12

- other services 1 2

There were no compensation or ex-gratia payments made in 2019/20 and in 2018/19.
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Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

7. Analysis of grants

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2019/20 2018/19
£000 £000 £000 £000

Improvements to Diocesan property
occupied by the Trust - 54 54 1,276
- 54 54 1,276

In 2018/19 the expenditure was incurred in relation to the expansion and water pipe replacement projects at St Joachim’s
Catholic Primary School and were related to restricted funds.

8. Charitable activities

Total Total

2019/20 2018/19

£000 £000

Direct costs - educational operations 9,181 4,208
Support costs — educational operations - 3,198 1,524
Total direct and support costs ‘ 12,379 5,732

In 2018/19, of the total expenditure on charitable activities, £5,650,000 was to restricted funds and £82,000 was to
restricted fixed asset funds. ‘

Analysis of support costs Total - Total
: 2019/20 2018/19

£000 £000

Support staff costs 1,111 585
Amortisation 1 2
Technology costs 31 18
Premises costs : 1,165 410
Legal costs - conversion _ 4 v 3
Legal costs - other : 6 4
Other support costs : 705 386
‘Governance costs 58 35
Pension Fund finance costs 117 81
Total support costs 3,198 1,524

Governance costs include costs associated with the strategic management of the Trust and costs relating to constitutional
and statutory requirements, such as audit fees, clerking and meeting costs and Trustees and Governors training. It also
includes academy conversion costs associated with the new schools joined the Trust (excluding legal costs).

9. Central Services

No central services were provided by the Trust to its academies during the period and no central charges arose
(2018/19:£nil).
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Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)
10.  Staff
a)  Staff costs

Staff costs during the period were:

Total Total

2019/20 2018/19

£000 £000

Wages and salaries 6,711 3,070
Social security costs (incl apprenticeship levy) 679 296
Operating cost of defined benefit pension schemes 1,939 784
9,329 4,150

Supply staff costs 146 61
Staff restructuring costs - -
Total Staff costs : 9,475 4211

There were no staff restructuring costs incurred in 2019/20 and 2018/19 an no non-statutory or non-contractual severance
payments were made in the reporting period (2018/19: £nil). :

b)  Staff numbers

The average and full time equivalent (FTE) number of persons employed by the Trust during the period was as follows:

2019/20 2019/20 2018/19 208/19

: Ave. no. FTE Ave. no. FTE

Teachers - 80 76 34 33
Administration and support : 142 103 - 71 51
Management , 12 12 5 5

234 191 110 89

¢)  Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:

2019/20 - 2018/19

No. No.

£60,000-£70,000 . -8 1
£70,001-£80,000 0 0
£80,001-£90,000 - I 1
£90,001-£100,000 1 0
£100,001 -£110,000 1 1
£110,001 -£120,000 1 0

The above employees participated in the Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS). During the year ended 31 August 2020,
employer pension contributions for these employees amounted to £193,291 (2018/19:£42,743).

d) Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Trust comprise the Trustees and the SLT as listed on page 3. The total amount of
employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and employer national insurance) received in the period
by key management personnel for their services to the Trust was £589,000 (The definition of SLT has been changed in
light of the expansion of the Trust, therefore 2018/19 comparison has been restated: £302,000). Non-executive Directors
are not remunerated by the Trust.

Included in the above are employer pension contributions of £85,000 (2018/19 restated: £42,000) and employer National
Insurance contributions of £58,000 (2018/19 restated :£29,000).
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11. Related Party Transactions — Trustees’ and Governors’ remuneration and expenses

No Trustees have been paid remuneration or have received other benefits from an employment with the Trust during the
2019/20 academic year (2018/19: £Nil).

During the period ended 31 August 2020, Local Governors (staff governors) received reimbursements of expenses
(generally for purchase of learning resources) for their role as Governors totalling £3,561 paid to 1 Headteacher
(2017/18: £428 to 3 Local Governors).

Other related party transactions involving the Trustees or Governors’ are set out in note 30.

12. Trustees and officers insurance

The Trust has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA), an alternative to insurance
where UK Government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects Trustees, Governors and Officers from claims
arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on Trust business, and provide cover up to £10,000,000.
It is not possible to quantify the Trustees, Governors and Officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA
scheme membership.

13. Intangible fixed assets

Computer
' Software Total
Costs . - £,000 £,000
At 1 September 2019 : . 9 9
Additions - -
Disposal ® (&)
At 31 August 2020 - -
Amortisation ‘ ' : .
At | September 2019 8 8
Charged in year | 1
Disposal ‘ 9 9)

At 31 August 2020 : ' -

Carrying amount : .
At 31 August 2019 1 1
At 31 August 2020 - -

Intangible fixed assets represented the accounting software, PS Financials, which was purchased by the Trust prior to 1
April 2015, which is the date on which the Trust started trading/operation. This asset is now fully depreciated.
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14. Tangible fixed assets ‘
Freehold Computer Furniture & Motor Total
land hardware  equipment vehicle

Costs £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000
At 1 September 2019 155 118 126 53 452
Transfer on conversion 41 134 15 190
Additions - 115 83 - 198
Disposals - (43) (48) - 91)
At 31 August 2020 155 230 295 68 749
Depreciation
At 1 September 2019 _ - 47 74 26 147
Charged in year - 71 69 16 156
Disposals - (43) (48) - 91)
At 31 August 2020 - 74 96 43 212
Net book values
At 31 August 2019 155 71 52 27 305
At 31 August 2020 155 156 199 26 537

Land and buildings include freehold land transferred on conversion from the London Borough of Newham for no
consideration, which was valued on the basis of fair value as at that date at £155,000 by an independent professional
property surveyor, Aitchison Raffety. The valuation was based on depreciated replacement cost method of valuation.

Fully depreciated assets are shown as disposals in both costs and depreciation in the table above.

15. Stock
2020 2019
£000 - £000
Educational books & stationary 18 15
18 15
16. Debtors
2020 2019
£,000 £,000
Due within one year
Trade debtors 30 18
VAT recoverable 60 57
Prepayments and accrued income 388 265
Other debtors (see note 30) 527 189
1,005 529
Due after more than one year
Other debtors (see note 30) 1,054 378
Total debtors 2,059 907
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17.  Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2020 : 2019
£000 £000
Trade creditors 267 142
Taxation and social security 161 74
GAG advance (CIF project) 21 -
Other creditors 627 196
Accruals and deferred income 917 426
1,993 838

Deferred income
Deferred income at 1 September 2019 618 298
Released from previous period (298) (298)
Resources deferred in the period 618 278
Deferred income at 31 August 2020 618 278

Deferred income held at 31 August 2020 includes:

* Universal Infant Free School Meal Grant of £131,000 received from ESFA in relation to 2020/21 (2019:
£62,000);

* Teaching School Core Funding of £23,00 received from ESFA in relation to 2020/21 (2019: £Nil);

» Business rate refund of £24,000 received from ESFA in relation to 2020/21 (2019: £12,000);

» FEarly Years Foundation Stage grants of 205,000 received from the London Borough of Newham (LBN) in
relation to 2020/21 (2019: £86,000);

*  Growth Fund grant of £108,000 received from LBN in relation to the additional class started in September 2020
(2019: £108,000); '

« Falling Roll grant of £60,000 receined from LBN in relation to 2020/21 (2019: £Nil)

* Higher Needs grant of £66,000 received from LBN and LBWF in relation to 2020/21 (2019: £Nil); and

» Parental contribution of £Nil received in relation to an international educational visit to be held in 2020/21
(2019: £10,000).

Other creditors includes £527,000 (2019:£189,000) for the future notional rental expense with regards to the Church
owned/leased permises occupied by the Trust. '

18. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

2020 2019

£000 .£°000

GAG in advance (CIF project) , 129 59
Other creditors 1,054 ’ 378
1,183 . 437

The Trust received GAG advance of £91,000 in 2019/20 and £59,000 in 2017/18 from the ESFA under the Condition
Improvement Fund scheme in relation to St Joachim’s school expansion project. The GAG advance is repayable over 7
years subsequent of the completion of the project at a fixed interest rate of 1.12%. The actual completion date of the
project was September 2019 and repayment have commenced in September 2020.

The other creditor related to the future notional rental expense with regards to the church owned/leased permises
occupied by the Trust.
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19. Funds
Balance at Balance at
1 Transfer Gains, losses 31 August
September Income Expenditure on and 2020
2019 Conversion transfers
£000 £000 £000 £000 £°000 £°000
Restricted general
funds
General Annual Grant - 8,077 (8,077) - - -
(GAG)
Pupil Premium - 434 (434) - - -
Other ESFA grant - 799 (799) - - -
Other Government - 1,603 (1,603) - - -
grants
Other activities 333 953 (988) - (34) 263
Pension reserve (4,357 -, (521) (2,180) (602) (7,660)
(4,024) 11,866 (12,422) (2,180) (636) (7,397
Restricted fixed assets
funds
Transfer on conversion 162 - (72) 190 - 280
DfE/ESFA capital (96) 239 (54) - 89
grants '
Capital expenditure
from unrestricted funds 90 68 (85) 34 107
156 307 211) 190 34 . 476
Total restricted funds (3,868) 12,172 (12,633) 190 (602) (6,920)
Total unrestricted 279 40 - H 745 - 1,063
funds
Total funds (3,588) 12,212 (12,634) (1,245) (602) (5,857)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

General Annual Grant (GAG)
This represents funding from the ESFA to cover costs of recurrent expenditure. Under the funding agreement with the
Secretary of State, the Trust is not subject to a limit on the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2020

or at 31 August 2019.

Pupil premium and Other ESFA grant
These funds represents funding from the ESFA primarily for free school meal pupils, universal infant free school meals
and PE and sports activities.

Other government grants

This fund represents funding primarily from the London Borough of Newham for EYFS services for 2 and 3 year olds,
higher needs pupils and KS2 meals (Mayoral promise). Any unspent grant in a year is used to enhance the educational
operation of the Trust in the coming years.

Restricted fund generated on other activities

This fund primarily represents parental contributions for extended school provision and educational visits. Any unspent
fund in a year is used to enhance the educational operation of the Trust in the coming years.
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19. Funds (continued)
Pension reserve

This fund represents the Trust’s share of the deficit on the LGPS transferred to the Trust on conversion from state
controlled schools. The pension reserve is revalued at each year-end by professional actuaries as shown in gains and
losses above.

Restricted fixed assets funds
This fund represents resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes. The transfer of funds relate to fixed
assets purchased out of unrestricted funds.

Unrestricted funds

This fund represents the remaining carry forward balance from income generated by the schools (e.g. hire of facilities)
and other donations where no specific intention for the income has been specified (e.g. donation from friends of the
schools) The Trust is aiming to use this fund to support its educational operation in the coming years.

The cash received from the LBN of £745,000 for the new academies which joined the Trust on 1 September 2019
represent the budget surplus at the date of conversion, which is classed as unrestricted funds in line with the Academies
Accounts Direction.

Review of restricted general funds (excluding pension reserve) and unrestricted funds
The Trust is carrying a net surplus of £1,327,000 (2019:£612,000) on unrestricted funds and is planning to utilise these

surplus funds to support its educational operation in the coming years.

Comparative information in respect of the preceeding period is as follows:

Balance at
1 September Balance at
2018 i Gains, losses 31 August
As restated Income Expenditure and transfers 2019
£000 _£000 £000 £000 £°000
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant - 3,877 3,877 - -
(GAG)
Pupil Premium 213 (213)
Other ESFA grant - 197 197 - -
Other government grants - 792 (792) - -
Other activities 426 387 (284) (196) 333
Pension reserve (3,196) - (286) (875) (4,357)
(2,770) 5,466 (5,650) (1,071) (4,024)
Restricted fixed assets
funds .
Transfer on conversion 174 - (12) - 162
DfE/EFA capital grants 735 223 (1,199) 145 (96)
Private sector capital
sponsorship 77 0 an - -
Capital expenditure from
unrestricted funds 109 - (70) 51 90
1,095 - 223 (1,358) 196 156
Total restricted funds (1,674) 5,689 (7,008) (875) (3,868)
Total unrestricted funds 259 25 (®)] - 279
Total funds (1,415) 5,714 (7,013) (875) (3,588)
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19. Funds (continued)
Anaiysis of academies by fund balance

Fund balances at 31 August 2020 were allocated as follows:

2020 2019
£000 £000
St Edward’s Catholic Primary School 499 -
St Francis’ Catholic Primary School 67 -
St Helen’s Catholic Primary School 498 378
St Joachim’s Catholic Primary School 263 234
Total before fixed assets and pension reserve 1,327 612
Restricted fixed assets fund 476 156
Pension reserve (7,660) (4,357)
Total (5,857) (3,588)
Total cost analysis by academy:
Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:
Teaching &
educational Other Other costs
support support Educational excluding Total Total
staff costs  staff costs supplies depreciation 2019/20 2018/19
- £000 £000 ~ £000 - £000 £000 £000
St Edward’s 1,941 281 : 47 793 3,062 -
St Francis’ 2,192 242 37 723 3,195 -
St Helen’s 2,447 349 .56 805 3,657 3,526
St Joachim’s 1,276 239 42 485 2,042 3,119
Pension & interest 404 - - : 117 521 286
Trust 8,259 1,111 183 2,923 12,476 6,931

The valuation of the LGPS is undertaken on the Trust level therefore the pension and interest disclosed above relating
to this pension scheme cannot be split by each academy.

20. Analysis of net assets between funds

Fund balances at 31 August 2020 are represented by:

Restricted Restricted 2020 2019

Unrestricted general fixed assets Total Total

funds funds funds funds funds

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Intangible fixed assets - - - - 1
Tangible fixed assets - - 537 537 305
Current assets 1,063 3,289 90 4,441 1,736
Current liabilities - (1,972) 2n (1,993) (838)
Non-current liabilities - (1,054) (129) (1,183) 37
Pension scheme liabilities - (7,660) - (7,660) (4,357)
Total net assets 1,063 (7,397 476 (5,857) (3,588)
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20. Analysis of net assets between funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceeding period is as follows:

Restricted 2019 2018

general Restricted Total Total

Unrestricted funds fixed assets funds funds

funds As restated funds As restated

£000 £000 £000 £000 £°000

Intangible fixed assets - - 1 1 3
Tangible fixed assets - - 305 305 289
Current assets 279 1,457 - 1,736 2,929
Current liabilities - (838) - (838) (1,004)
Non-current liabilities - (287) (150) (437) (437)
Pension scheme liabilities - 4,357 - 4,357) (3,196)

Total net assets 279 (4,024) 156 (3,588) (1,415)

21. Capital commitments

2020 2019

Total Total

£000 £000

Contracted for but not provided in the financial statements _ 165 -
Total - : : - 165 -

St Helen’s Catholic Primary School has secured a CIF grant of £143,000 for expanding from boiler replacement works.
The project started on site in August 2020 and expected to complete in October 2020.
The total estimated project cost is £218,000, of which £54,000 has been incurred in 2019/20 (2018/19: £Nil ).

The Trust had no capital commitments as at 31 August 2019, other then the retention payments with regards to the prior
year’s CIF projects of St Joachim’s, which were fully accrued.

'22. Operating leases

At 31 August 2020 the total of the Trust’s future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases was:

2020 2019

Total Total

£000 £000

Amounts due within one year 12 6
Amounts due between one and five years 5 7
Amounts due after five years - -
Total 17 13
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23. Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities

2019/20 2018/19
Total Total
£,000 £°000
Net (expenditure) for the reporting period (as per Statement of Financial Activities) (1,667) (1,298)
Adjusted for:
Amortisation and depreciation charges 158 82
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income 307) (223)
Interest receivable ) 3
Fixed assets inherited on conversion (190 -
Cash transferred to Academy Trust on conversion (745) -
Defined benefit pension scheme obligation inherited 2,180 -
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contribution payable ' 404 205
Defined benefit pension scheme finance costs 115 80
Defined benefit pension scheme administrative expenses : 2 1
(Increase)/decrease in stock 3) 3)
(Increase)/decrease in debtors (1,152) @)
Increase/(decrease) in creditors 1,809 (166)
Net cash provided by /(used in) operating activities 603 (1,332)
24. Cash flows from financing activities
o 2019/20  2018/19
Total Total
) £000 £000
Cash transferred to Academy Trust on conversion 745 -
Cash inflows from new borrowing , 91 -
Net cash provided by /(used in) financing activities 836 -
25.  Cash flows from investing activities
: 2019/20 2018/19
Total Total
£000 £000
Interest received from investment 2 3
Purchase of tangible fixed assets : - (198) 96)
Capital grants from DfE / ESFA 239 223
Capital funding received from sponsors and others ' 68 -
Net cash provided by /(used in) investing activities 111 130
26.  Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
At 31 At 31
August August
2020 2019
£000 £000
Cash in hand and at bank 1,889 590
Notice deposits (less than 3 months) 475 225
Total cash and cash equivalents 2,364 815
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27.  Analysis of changes in net debt

At 1 September Cash flows Other non-cash At 31 August

2019 changes 2020

£000 £000 £000 £000

Cash 815 1,550 - 2,364

815 1,550 - 2,364

Loans falling due within 1 - - 0N 21

year (GAG advance)

Loans falling due after more (59) 1 21 (129)
than 1 year (GAG advance)

Total 756 1,458 - 2,214

28. Contingent liabilities

The Trust had no contingent liabilities, which were not provided for in the financial statements as at 31 August 2020
(2019:£nil).

29. Members liability
Each Member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Company in the event of it being

wound up while he/she is a Member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a Member, such amount as may be
required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a Member.

30. Pension and similar obligations
The Trust's employees bélong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England and Wales (TPS)

for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is
managed by the London Borough of Newham. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The Trust has obtained a valuation of defined benefit obligations in respect of the LGPS from the scheme actuary. The
valuation has been carried out in accordance with section 28 of FRS102.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March 2016.
There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year.
Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS or scheme) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All teachers have the
option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage of salary —
these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided
by the Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in accordance
with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury every
4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent
on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation
of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016.
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30. Pension and similar obligations (continued)

The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019. The key elements of the valuation
and subsequent consultation are:
¢ employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy);
¢ total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to
- the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the
notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a notional past service deficit of
£22,000 million;
e the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE rate is
2.4% above the rate of CPI. assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings.
The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return including earnings
growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.

The employer’s pension contribution paid to TPS in the period amounted to £906,322 (2019: £297,365). Employee
contributions for the same period amounted to £385,234 (2019: £179,481).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The Trust has accounted
for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The Trust has set out above the information

available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds. The
total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2020 was £766,577 (2019: £349,946), of which employer's
contributions totalled £622,637 (2019: £281,289) and employees' contributions totalled £143,940 (2019: £68,657). The
agreed contribution rates for future years are 27.6% (2019: 25.5%) per cent for employers and between 5.5%-12.5% per
cent for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of an academy
trust closure, outstanding LGPS liabilities would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force

on 18 July 2013.

Principal actuarial assumptions

At _ At

31 August 31 August

: 2020 2019

Inflation assumption (RPI) 3.10% 3.20%
Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.30% 2.20%
Rate of increase in salaries 3.30% 3.70%
Rate of increase for pension in payment/inflation 2.30% 2.20%
Discount rate 1.60% 1.85%
Commutation of pension to lump sum 50.0% 50.0%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

At At
31August 31 August
2020 2019
Retiring today

Males 21.3 22.8
Females 23.9 253

Retiring in 20 years
Males 22.8 25.0
Females 25.5 27.6

49



Our Lady of Grace Catholic Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

30. Pension and similar obligations (continued)

The Trust's share of the assets in the scheme were as follows, which were estimated to be less than 1% of total assets of

the fund:
Bid value at Bid value at
31 August 31 August
2020 2019
£000 £°000
Equities 2,308 1,125
Gilts 217 74
Other bonds 421 200
Property 419 197
Cash 303 156
Alternative assets 699 235
Total 4,367 1,987

The return on the fund (on a bid value to bid value basis) for the period to 31 August 2020 is estimated to be -3%

(2019: 7%). The actual return on fund assets for the period to 31 August 2020 was -£132,000 (2019:£119,000).

Statement of financial position

At 31August At 31 August
2020 2019
. £000 £000
Present value of defined benefit contribution (12,027) (6,344)
Fair value of fund assets (bid value) 4,367 1,987
Net defined benefit (liability) /asset (7,660) (4,357)
Amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities
2019/20 2018/19
Total . Total
£000 £000
Service cost 3,200 503
Net interest on defined liability 115 80
Administration expenses 2 1
Total operating charge 3,317 584
Analysis of pension finance (income)/costs
Interest cost 191 125
Interest on assets (76) 45)
Pension finance (income)/cost 115 80
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:
: 2019/20 2018/19
Total Total
£000 £000
1 September 6344 4,699
Current service cost 1,020 451
Interest cost 191 125
Change in financial assumptions 769 949
Change in demographic assumptions (757) -
Experience loss/(gain) on defined benefit obligation 492 -
Liabilities assumed/(extinguished) om settlements 4,021 -
Estimated benefits paid net of transfers in 199) 6)
Past service costs, including curtailments - 52
Contribution by scheme participant and other employers 146 74
At 31 August 12,027 6,344
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30. Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Changes in the fair value of Trust’s share of scheme assets:

2019/20 2018/19

Total Total

£000 £000

1 September 1,987 1,503
Interest on assets 76 45
Return on assets less interest (208) 74
Other actuarial gains/(losses) 110 -
Administration expenses ) @))]
Contributions by employer including unfunded 616 298
Contributions by scheme participants and other employees 146 74
Estimated benefits paid plus unfunded net of transfers in 199 6)
Settlement prices received / (paid) 1,841 -
At 31 August _ 4,367 1,987

Sensitivity analysis of principal assumptions used:

The sensitivity analysis detailed below would increase the closing defined benefit obligation in the following way:

2020 2020 2020
£°000 £000 £°000
Adjustment to discount rate - +0.1% 0.0% -0.1%
Present value of total obligation 11,761 ’ 12,027 12,300
Projected service cost 1,125 1,159 1,194
Adjustment to long term salary increase . +0.1% 0.0% -0.1%
Present value of total obligation 12,058 12,027 11,996
Projected service cost ' : 1,160 1,159 1,158
Adjustment to pension increases and
deferred revaluation +0.1% 0.0% -0.1%
Present value of total obligation 12,266 12,027 11,793
Projected service cost 1,193 1,159 1,126
Adjustment to life expectancy assumptions - +1 year none -1 year
Present value of total obligation ) 12,522 12,027 11,552
Projected service cost 1,206 1,159 1,114

31. Related and connected party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Trust and the composition of the Board of Trustee and Local Governing Bodies being drawn
from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the Trustees,
Governors or members of the key management personnel have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations
are conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook, including notifying the ESFA
of all transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the Trust's financial
regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions.
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31.

Related and connected party transactions (continued)

The following related party transaction took place in the financial period:

The Trust operates from land and buildings provided rent free by the Diocese of Brentwood. Under an agreement
between the Diocese, the Trust and the Secretary of State, the Diocese would be required to give 24 months
notice from the year end if it wished to terminate the agreement. No such notice have been given at the year end
and the Diocese is therefore committed to provide the land and buildings rent free for a further 36 months from
the year end. The Trustees estimate that the costs of renting equivalent premises would be £527,000 per annum
(2018/19: £189,000). On this basis a donation from the Diocese of £527,000 is shown in the accounts together
with a notional expense of the same amount. In addition, included within debtors and creditors is a donation in
kind receivable/paybale of £1,581,000 (2018/19: £567,000) representing the commitment by the Diocese to
provide the land and buildings for rent free for a further 36 months.The equivalent amount is also included in
creditors.

During the period the Trust incurred expenditure of £11,855 (2019: £8,946) in relation to educational support
services from The Brentwood Roman Catholic Diocesan Trust (BRCDT) and £800 (2019: £765) for training
courses and RE educational resources supplied by BRCDT. Right Reverend A Williams, a member of the Trust,
is a director of the sole trustee of The Brentwood Roman Catholic Diocesan Trust. At the period end no balance
was due to The Brentwood Roman Catholic Diocesan Trust. Right Reverend A Williams is entitled to exercise
10% of the voting power at The Brentwood Roman Catholic Diocesan Trust and has no financial or profit share
entitlement so transactions with The Brentwood Roman Catholic Diocesan Trust are not subject to the 'at cost'
rules set out in the Academies Financial Handbook.

St Francis Catholic Primary School has engaged Xenogenesis Ltd, a company owned by the husband of the Head
teacher, N Scott, to provide a workshop to parents and staff members on Black History month for a fee of £500.
The transaction has been registered on the DfE related party portal.

St Edward’s Catholic Primary School has commissioned Big Roar Creative, owned by the sister 1n—law of the
Head teacher, C Mabey, to create document design and art illustrations for a fee of £1,100. The transaction has
been registered on the DfE related party portal.

‘There were no other related party transactions during the year ended 31 August 2020 (2019: none).
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32. Teaching school trading account

St Edward’s Catholic Primary School, one of the new academies which joined the Trust on 1 September 2019, is a
teaching school. The trading account for the teaching school is shown below:

201920 2018/19
Total Total
£°000 £000
Income
Direct Income -
Grants 94 -
Other Income
Fundraising and other trading activities 101 -
Total Income 195 -
Expenditure
Direct Costs . .
Direct Staff costs ' 89 -
Staff development ‘ - -
- Other direct costs : 21 -
. Total Direct Costs 110 -
Other Costs
Support staff costs ' 16 -
Technology costs - -
Recruitment and Support o - -
Other support costs - 74 -
Total Other Costs 90 -
Total Expenditure ' : 200 -
Transfer between funds 4 ' - -
Surplus /(Deficit) from all resources ' 5 -
Teaching school balances at 1 September 2019 A - -
Teachihg school balances at 31 August 2020 ' (5) -

St Edward’s paid £8,400 to St Joachim’s (another academy in the Trust) with regards to 2 trainee teachers in 2019/20
which is eliminated on consolidation for the purpose of these accounts. Therefore, the actual deficit of the teaching school
was £13,000 in 2019/20.
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33.  Conversion to Academy

On 1 September 2019 St Edward’s Catholic Primary School and St Francis’ Catholic Primary School converted to
academy status under the Academies Act 2010 and all operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to Our Lady
of Grace Catholic Academy Trust from the London Borough of Newham for £nil consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and liabilities transferred were
valued at their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the appropriate headings with a corresponding net
amount recognised as a net gain in the Statement of Financial Activities as. Donations - transfer from local authority on
conversion.

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an analysis of their
recognition in the SOFA:

Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Assets Total
Funds Funds Funds Funds
£000 £000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assets
Other tangible fixed assets - - 190 190
Cash — representing budget 745 - - 745
surplus on LA funds
LGPS pension (deficit) - (2,180) - (2,180)
Total net assets 745 (2,180) 190 (1,245)

The basis for valuation of the above assets and liabilities is detailed in the Trust’s accounting policies note (note 1) on
pages 31-35.
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